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I.  AUTHORITY FOR RESTRAINT OF PETITIONER 

Defendant/Petitioner, Eddie Arnold, is currently incarcerated in the 

Stafford Creek Corrections Center, in Aberdeen, Washington, following 

his 2015 convictions in Spokane County Superior Court for Failure to 

Register as a Sex Offender and Trafficking in Stolen Property Second 

Degree. 

II. STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

On May 3, 1988, the defendant was charged in Chelan County, 

Washington, with statutory rape in the second degree, in violation of 

RCW 9A.44.080(1).  Attachment A (1988 Information, Statement on Plea 

of Guilty, and Judgment and Sentence).  The defendant was charged with 

statutory rape after he engaged in sexual intercourse with a twelve year 

old, who was not his spouse. Id. At the time of the rape, the defendant was 

28 years old. Id. The defendant pled guilty as charged and was sentenced 

on August 2, 1988 to a high-end, standard range sentence of 41 months.  

Id.  He received 96 days credit for time already served. Id. The defendant 

was released from prison on August 13, 1990, and was under the 

supervision of the Department of Corrections from that date until 

March 20, 1992. Attachment B (Offender Movement History). 

 Between the date of his release from supervision on the rape 

charge in 1992, and the current date, the defendant was convicted of 
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12 felonies (not including the current case, or its companion trafficking in 

stolen property charge).  Attachment C (Prosecutor’s Understanding of 

Defendant’s Criminal History). Of those 12 felony convictions, five were 

convictions for failing to register as a sex offender, with offense dates in 

2000, 2003 (two convictions), 2004 and 2007. Id.  

 On October 11, 2013, the State again charged the defendant with 

failing to register as a sex offender, alleging that between May 2013 and 

October 2013, the defendant failed to comply with the registration 

requirements of RCW 9A.44.130.  Attachment D (2013 Failure to Register 

Information, Statement on Plea of Guilty, and Judgment and Sentence). 

The defendant was also charged with first degree trafficking in stolen 

property. Attachment E (2013 Trafficking in Stolen Property Information, 

Amended Information, Statement on Plea of Guilty, and Judgment and 

Sentence). 

 The defendant pled guilty as charged to failure to register as a sex 

offender, in exchange for the State’s agreement to amend the trafficking in 

stolen property first degree to trafficking in stolen property second degree. 

Pursuant to this negotiated agreement, a joint recommendation of 

51 months was requested on each charge, to be served concurrently. 

Attachment D and E. At the sentencing hearing on June 4, 2015, the court 

followed the jointly requested sentencing recommendation and imposed 
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51 months of incarceration, along with other conditions.  Attachment D 

and E. 

 On June 17, 2015, the Spokane County Sheriff’s Office sent the 

defendant a letter indicating that he was no longer required to register as a 

sex offender pursuant to State v. Taylor.
1
   Attachment  F. The defendant 

then moved to withdraw his guilty plea, alleging that he was unaware of 

State v. Taylor. Pet. at 3.  The trial court, finding that the defendant did not 

make a substantial showing of entitlement to relief, then transferred the 

matter to this court pursuant to CrR 7.8 for its consideration as a personal 

restraint petition. Order Transferring Case to Court of Appeals (1/14/16).  

III. STATEMENT OF DISPUTED AND MATERIAL FACTS 

Except as set forth above, Respondent denies all other allegations.  

IV. ARGUMENT 

A personal restraint petition is not a substitute for direct appeal and 

availability of collateral relief is limited. In re Pers. Restraint of St. Pierre, 

118 Wn.2d 321, 328–29, 823 P.2d 492 (1992). In order to successfully 

argue a claim on a personal restraint petition, a petitioner must 

demonstrate by a preponderance of the evidence either a constitutional 

error that worked to his actual and substantial prejudice, or a 

nonconstitutional error that constitutes a fundamental defect inherently 

                                                 
1
  State v. Taylor, 162 Wn. App. 791, 259 P.3d 289 (Div. I 2011). 
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resulting in a complete miscarriage of justice.  Id. at 328. A petitioner 

must support his claim with facts or evidence of unlawful restraint, and 

not merely conclusory allegations. See In re Pers. Restraint of Cook, 

114 Wn.2d 802, 813, 792 P.2d 506 (1990). And, “a petitioner must show 

that more likely than not he was prejudiced by the error.”  State v. Brune, 

45 Wn. App. 354, 363, 725 P.2d 454 (1986).  

Where a motion to withdraw a guilty plea is made in superior court 

by way of a CrR 7.8 motion, a defendant is required to provide the court 

with a statement of grounds on which the defendant seeks relief, supported 

by affidavits setting forth a concise statement of the facts or errors upon 

which the motion is based. CrR 7.8(c)(1).  The Superior Court must 

transfer a post-conviction motion to the Court of Appeals for consideration 

as a personal restraint petition unless the court determines that the motion 

is not time barred and either the defendant has made a substantial showing 

of merit, or a factual hearing is required to decide the motion.  

CrR 7.8(c)(2); see also, In Re Pers. Restraint of Ruiz-Sanabria, 

184 Wn.2d 632, 362 P.3d 758 (2015).   

Once a CrR 7.8 motion is transferred to the Court of Appeals, “the 

motion becomes subject to more rigorous pleading standards applicable to 

personal restraint petitions, as set forth in RAP 16.7.” In Re Ruiz-

Sanabria, 362 P.3d at 761. The petitioner must identify “the evidence 
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available to support the factual allegations and why the petitioner is 

entitled to collateral relief for one or more reasons listed in RAP 16.4(c).”
2
 

RAP 16.7(a)(2)(i). 

Defendant claims that his 2015 conviction for failure to register as 

a sex offender was the result of an invalid plea and that he should be 

allowed to withdraw his plea to correct a “manifest injustice.” These 

claims are based on the assertion that State v. Taylor applies to his case.  

Defendant has not challenged any of his previous convictions for 

Failure to Register as a Sex Offender, nor has he challenged the sentence 

                                                 
2
  The rule provides that restraint must be unlawful for one or more of the 

following reasons:  

 

(1) The decision in a civil or criminal proceeding was entered without 

jurisdiction over the person of the petitioner or the subject matter; or 

(2) The conviction was obtained or the sentence or other order entered 

in a criminal proceeding or civil proceeding instituted by the state or 

local government was imposed or entered in violation of the 

Constitution of the United States or the Constitution or laws of the 

State of Washington; or (3) Material facts exist which have not been 

previously presented and heard, which in the interest of justice require 

vacation of the conviction, sentence, or other order entered in a 

criminal proceeding or civil proceeding instituted by the state or local 

government; or (4) There has been a significant change in the law, 

whether substantive or procedural, which is material to the conviction, 

sentence, or other order entered in a criminal proceeding or civil 

proceeding instituted by the state or local government, and sufficient 

reasons exist to require retroactive application of the changed legal 

standard; or (5) Other grounds exist for a collateral attack upon a 

judgment in a criminal proceeding or civil proceeding instituted by the 

state or local government; or (6) The conditions or manner of the 

restraint of petitioner are in violation of the Constitution of the United 

States or the Constitution or laws of the State of Washington; or 

(7) Other grounds exist to challenge the legality of the restraint of 

petitioner. 

 

RAP 16.4(c). 
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imposed on his 2015 conviction for Trafficking in Stolen Property Second 

Degree. 

  As discussed below, State v. Taylor was incorrectly decided, and 

this court should decline to apply it to the petitioner’s case.  

A. PETITIONER SHOULD NOT BE PERMITTED TO 

WITHDRAW HIS GUILTY PLEA BECAUSE STATE v. 

TAYLOR WAS INCORRECTLY DECIDED. 

In 2011, Division I decided State v. Taylor, holding that Statutory 

Rape in the Third Degree (former RCW 9A.44.090 (1979)) “is” not a “sex 

offense” within the meaning of RCW 9.94A.030.   In 2015, Division II 

decided In Re Pers. Restraint Wheeler, 188 Wn. App. 613, 354 P.3d 950, 

and permitted Mr. Wheeler to withdraw his 1999 guilty plea for failure to 

register as a sex offender, an offense predicated on his 1985 conviction for 

third degree statutory rape. In that case, the court found Mr. Wheeler’s 

plea to be invalid on its face based upon the decision in State v. Taylor.  

With all due respect to the Taylor and Wheeler courts, these 

decisions were predicated upon a misinterpretation of the law, and were 

incorrectly decided.  
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History of RCW 9A.44 and RCW 9.94A.030 

In 1967, the Legislature directed the Legislative Council to 

propose a new penal code; in following its directive, the Council relied 

heavily on the Model Penal Code and revised codes from other states.  

13A Washington Practice, Criminal Law § 102 (2015).  The final result of 

the Council’s efforts was a new criminal code, Title 9A, that was enacted 

in 1975.  Laws of 1975, 1
st
 Ex. Sess., ch. 260.  The new code’s effective 

date was July 1, 1976.  Laws of 1975, 1
st
 Ex. Sess., ch. 260, § 9A.04.010 

(“This title shall be known and may be cited as the Washington Criminal 

Code and shall become effective July 1, 1976.”) 

Subsequently, in 1981, the Legislature passed the Sentencing 

Reform Act, RCW 9.94A, to ensure that the criminal justice system was 

accountable to the public by developing a system which structured 

discretionary decisions affecting sentences. 13 Washington Practice, 

Criminal Practice and Procedure § 4804. The effective date of the SRA 

was July 1, 1984, and only applied to offenses committed after that date. 

See, In Re Pers. Restraint Blair, 38 Wn. App. 670, 672-673, 688 P.2d 532 

(1984), disapproved of by Addleman v. Bd. of Prison Terms and Paroles, 

107 Wn.2d 503, 730 P.2d 1327 (1986) (holding that Board of Prison 

Terms should consider SRA sentence ranges in making decisions on 
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duration of confinement, although the SRA did not apply to persons 

convicted and sentenced prior to the effective date of the SRA).  

History of RCW 9A.44, the Statutory Rape and Child Rape Laws 

Before the 1975 adoption of the new criminal code under Title 9A, 

the crimes of statutory rape were codified in former RCW 9.79.200 (First 

Degree), former RCW 9.79.210 (Second Degree), and former 

RCW 9.79.220. Those charges were recodified in Title 9A in 1975 and 

became effective on July 1, 1976.  Former RCW 9A.44.070 - .090 (1975).
3
  

The statutes were later amended in 1979.  Laws of 1979, Ex. Sess., 

ch. 244, §§ 4-6. Specifically, former RCW 9A.44.080 (1979), second 

degree statutory rape provided: 

(1) A person over sixteen years of age is guilty of 

statutory rape in the second degree when such person 

engages in sexual intercourse with another person, not 

married to the perpetrator, who is eleven years of age or 

older but less than fourteen years old.  

 

(2) Statutory rape in the second degree is a class B 

felony.  

 

The crimes of statutory rape first, second and third degree were 

defined as “sex offenses” under the then-existing criminal code.  Former 

                                                 
3
  The elements of former RCW 9.79.210 did not change when the crime was 

recodified as RCW 9A.44.080 in 1975. See Former RCW 9.79.210 (1975); Former 

RCW 9A.44.080 (1979).  
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RCW 9.94A.030(23) (1987).
4
  In 1987,

5
 offenders charged under the final 

versions of these statutes before recodification were eligible for a special 

sexual offender sentencing alternative, just as defendants may be eligible 

for such an alternative program under the current versions of the statutes.  

See Former RCW 9.94A.120 (1987). 

In 1988, however, the legislature “repealed” former 

RCW 9A.44.070 - .090 and enacted RCW 9A.44.073, 9A.44.076 and 

9A.44.079, Washington’s child rape statutes.  Laws of 1988, ch. 145, 

§ 24.
6
 The legislature described this change as a “renaming” of the 

                                                 
4
  “Sex offense” means: 

 

(a) A felony that is a violation of chapter 9A.44 RCW or 

RCW 9A.64.020 or 9.68A.090 or that is, under chapter 9A.28 

RCW a criminal attempt, criminal solicitation, or criminal 

conspiracy to commit such crimes; or 

(b) Any federal or out-of-state conviction for an offense that under the 

law of this state would be a felony classified as a sex offense under 

(a) of this subsection.  

 

Former RCW 9.94A.040(23) (1987) (emphasis added). 

 
5
  The year 1987 is used here because the first amendments that the Taylor court 

relied upon to exclude former RCW 9A.44.070 -.090 from the definition of “sex offense” 

became effective in July 1988, when those statutes were recodified as the child rape 

statutes.  

 
6
  The 1988 version of rape of a child in the second degree provided: 

 

(1) A person is guilty of rape of a child in the second degree when the 

person has sexual intercourse with another who is at least twelve 

years old, but less than fourteen years old and not married to the 

perpetrator and the perpetrator is at least thirty-six months older 

than the victim. 
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offenses. 1988 FINAL LEGISLATIVE REPORT, 50
th

 Wash. Leg., at 

24-25.  Our Supreme Court described the changes to the statutory rape 

provisions as a “recodification.”  See State v. Markle, 118 Wn.2d 424, 

430-31, 823 P.2d 1101 (1992).
 7

   

History of RCW 9A.44.130, the Sex Offender Registration Law 

In 1990, the Washington Legislature passed the Community 

Protection Act, requiring registration of certain sex offenders.  Laws of 

1990, ch. 3, § 401. Its stated purpose in requiring sex offenders to register 

was to assist local law enforcement agencies in protecting their 

communities: 

The legislature finds that sex offenders often pose a high 

risk of re-offense, and that law enforcement’s efforts to 

protect their communities, conduct investigations, and 

quickly apprehend offenders who commit sex offenses, are 

impaired by the lack of information available to law 

enforcement agencies about convicted sex offenders who 

live within the law enforcement agency’s jurisdiction.  

Therefore, this state’s policy is to assist local law 

enforcement agencies’ efforts to protect their communities  

 

  

                                                                                                                         

(2) Rape of a child in the second degree is a class B felony. 

 

Laws of 1988, ch. 145, § 3.  

 

 The 1990 amendment to RCW 9A.44.076 then reclassified Rape of a Child in 

the Second Degree as a class A felony.  Laws of 1990, ch. 3, § 903.  

7
  The names of these charges were changed to more accurately denote that these 

crimes are violations of a person, rather than merely a violation of a statute.  
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by regulating sex offenders by requiring sex offenders 

register with local law enforcement agencies.  

 

Laws of 1990, ch. 3, § 401. 

 

 Perhaps leery of their ability to make the registration requirement 

retroactive because of potential ex post facto claims, the legislature made 

the registration requirement apply only prospectively and to sex offenders 

already under active jurisdiction of the courts.  Under the 1990 

Community Protection Act, a “sex offense” for purposes of sex offender 

registration was defined by former RCW 9A.44.140 (1990) as “any 

offense defined as a sex offense by RCW 9.94A.030”: 

(a) committed on or after February 28, 1990; or 

(b) committed prior to February 28, 1990 if the person, as a 

result of the offense is under the custody or active 

supervision of the department of corrections or the 

department of social and health services on or after 

February 28, 1990.  

 

Laws of 1990, ch. 3, § 402(5).
8
  

 

 The meaning of “sex offense” under the 1990 version of 

RCW 9.94A.030 was: 

(a) A felony that is a violation of chapter 9A.44 RCW or 

RCW 9A.64.020 or 9.68A.090  or that is, under chapter 

9A.28 RCW, a criminal attempt, criminal solicitation, 

or criminal conspiracy to commit such crimes; 

(b) A felony with a finding of sexual motivation under 

RCW 9.94A.127; or 

                                                 
8
  Mr. Arnold was incarcerated until August 13, 1990 and then was supervised 

until 1992. Attachment B. 
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(c) Any federal or out-of-state conviction for an offense 

that under the laws of this state would be a sex offense 

under (a) of this subsection. 

 

Former RCW 9.94A.030(29) (1990) (emphasis added).  

 

In 1991, the legislature amended the Community Protection Act to 

clarify and amend the deadlines for sex offenders to register. Laws of 

1991, ch. 274, § 1.  However, the Legislature stated that the clarification 

or amendment of RCW 9A.44.130 “does not relieve the obligation of sex 

offenders to comply with the registration requirements of RCW 9A.44.130 

as that statute exists before July 28, 1991.” Laws of 1991, ch. 274, § 1. 

Thus, the legislature did not intend that its 1991 amendment should have 

any nullifying effect on the pre-existing duty to register under the 1990 

version of the statute.  

In 1994, an ex post facto claim was, in fact, raised by two 

defendants, and was decided by our Supreme Court in State v. Ward. 

123 Wn.2d 488, 869 P.2d 1062 (1994).  In Ward, the Court held that 

because the registration requirement was not a penalty, there was no ex 

post facto violation involved.  Id.  

Likely resultant from the adjudication of Ward and the resolution 

of the ex post facto question, the legislature amended RCW 9.94A.030 in 

1999 to include in the definition of “sex offense” “any conviction for a 

felony offense in effect at any time prior to July 1, 1976, that is 
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comparable to a felony classified as a sex offense in (a) of this 

subsection.” Laws of 1999, ch. 352, § 8.
9
  Thus, the 1999 amendment had 

the effect of including sex offenses existing before the promulgation of 

Title 9A in the registration requirement, as the legislature then knew from 

the holding in Ward that it could include not only post-1976 crimes 

codified under Title 9A, but also pre-1976 crimes codified under Title 9, 

without offending the prohibition against ex post facto laws. The 1999 

amendment also included the language that a “sex offense” also means “a 

felony that is a violation of chapter 9A.44” excluding convictions under 

RCW 9A.44.130(10). Laws of 1999, ch. 352, § 8 (emphasis added).  

1. The Taylor and Wheeler courts incorrectly interpreted the 

statutes at issue.  

The decisions in Taylor and Wheeler incorrectly interpreted the 

statutes at issue.  Taylor relied on the 1999 amendment to the 

RCW 9.94A.030 for its holding that the plain language of 

RCW 9.94A.030’s definition of “sex offense” applies only to offenses 

currently listed in chapter 9A.44 RCW, and therefore, does not apply to 

any previously codified “sex offenses” under 9A.44 RCW. 

                                                 
9
  The Taylor court indicated this amendment is consistent with a view “that the 

language of the statute did not apply the duty to register to crimes not presently listed in 

chapter 9A.44. RCW.” Taylor, 162 Wn. App. at 798.   

 However, this amendment is equally, if not more consistent with the view that 

the legislature intended to extend the registration requirements to crimes that were never 

listed in RCW 9A.44, as RCW 9A.44 did not exist until the 1976 adoption of 

Washington’s new penal code, codified in Title 9A.    
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The 1999 amendment extended the registration requirement 

to any conviction for a felony offense before July 1, 1976, 

that is comparable to a current sex offense… But, there is 

no provision, comparable to what was done for pre-1976 

convictions, for offenses listed in chapter 9A.44 that 

existed after 1976, but were subsequently repealed.  The 

language of the SRA’s definition resulted in a gap.  Filling 

this gap would require us to read words into the statute to 

make it applicable to any felony that is “or was at the time 

of the offense” a violation of chapter 9A.44 RCW. It is 

highly likely this gap was inadvertent rather than 

intentional.  Regardless, we may not fill such a gap without 

legislative authority.  

 

Taylor, 162 Wn. App. at 799.   

 

 Taylor correctly noted, however, that in 1991, the registration 

requirement applied both prospectively to any individual thereafter 

convicted of a sex offense, and retroactively to those in custody or 

supervised by the Department of Corrections.
10

 Id. at 798. Inexplicably, 

however, the Taylor court determined the 1999 amendment, which merely 

extended the registration requirement to defendants convicted under the 

pre-1976 criminal code, to be more restrictive than the legislature 

intended, and as having undone the legislature’s express provision that the 

statute was to operate retroactively to those either incarcerated or 

supervised prior to July 28, 1991.   

                                                 
10

  Under the 1991 Amendment to RCW 9A.44.130 the Taylor court would, 

therefore, agree that Mr. Arnold was required to register as he was either in custody or 

supervised until 1992. Attachment B.  

 



15 

 

The plain language of the 1999 amendment indicates it was only 

intended to be more inclusive of those offenders who are required to 

register as sex offenders (i.e., those who were sentenced under comparable 

Washington law codified prior to the 1976 adoption of RCW 9A.44.)
11

  

The only “gap” in the statute is the gap created by the Taylor court, not by 

the legislature.   In declining to fill this “gap” Taylor determined was 

created by the 1999 amendment, the Taylor court clearly interpreted the 

plain language of the statutes in a manner contrary to legislative intent. 

Importantly, the Taylor court did not consider the general 

provisions of the Revised Code of Washington in its analysis.  Firstly, the 

provisions of the code shall be liberally construed, and shall not be limited 

by any rule of strict construction.  RCW 1.12.010.  The provisions of a 

statute, so far as they are substantially the same as those of a statute 

existing at the time of their enactment, must be construed as continuations 

thereof. RCW 1.12.020.  If a statute refers to another statute of this state, 

the reference includes any amendments to the referenced statute unless a 

contrary intent is clearly expressed.  RCW 1.12.028.  These provisions 

                                                 
11

  It is only logical that the legislature would intend to include as many sex 

offenders in the registration requirements of RCW 9A.44.130 as possible, to ensure that 

law enforcement is able “to protect their communities, conduct investigations and quickly 

apprehend offenders who commit sex offenses.” See Laws of 1990, ch. 3, § 401.  

Allowing large classes of convicted rapists (such as all of those convicted under the 

statutory rape laws existing between 1976 and 1988, as held in Taylor) to evade the 

registration requirements clearly defeats this express legislative purpose.  
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overwhelmingly indicate that the statutes at issue, and all prior versions of 

those statutes are to be read as a whole unless a contrary intent is 

manifested.  As discussed above, the only legislative intent that is 

manifested is that the provisions of the Community Protection Act should 

apply to (1) all sex offenses committed after the effective date of the 

statute; (2) all sex offenses committed prior to the effective date of the 

statute if the offender was in custody or was on community supervision at 

the time of the enactment; and (3) all pre-1976 felonies comparable to sex 

offenses under RCW 9.94A.
12

  

 In State v. Horton, 59 Wn. App. 412, 798 P.2d 813 (1990), this 

Court analyzed a similar issue in light of the general provisions of 

RCW 1.12. Mr. Horton pled guilty to a 1988 second degree assault with a 

deadly weapon.  The statute providing for the deadly weapon 

enhancement, RCW 9.94A.310, specifically provided for the enhancement 

to apply to charges of second degree assault under RCW 9A.36.020.  

Horton, 59 Wn. App. at 414 n. 3. The statute also provided that, effective 

May 7, 1989, the enhancement applied to second degree assault under 

RCW 9A.36.020 or 9A.36.021. Id. The question on appeal was whether 

                                                 
12

  The legislature has also made it clear that any out-of-state conviction for a 

felony that is comparable to a Washington sex offense that occurred at any time is a “sex 

offense.” See RCW 9.94A.030(47)(d) (2015); Former RCW 9.94A.030(29) (1990); 

Former RCW 9.94A.040(23)(b) (1987).  
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the deadly weapon enhancement was applicable to offenses charged under 

RCW 9A.36.021 at the time of Mr. Horton’s crime. Id.  

 The court analyzed the provisions of RCW 1.12, and held that the 

provision applied retroactively to Mr. Horton.  As in Horton, the various 

versions of RCW 9.94A.030 defining “sex offense” should be viewed, not 

in isolation, but as continuations of the previous versions of the same 

statutory provisions. Although the statutory rape laws have been noted as 

“repealed,” the legislature characterized their “repeal” as simply a 

“renaming” of the offenses, and our Supreme Court has characterized the 

“repeal” as merely a “recodification” of the offenses.
13

 In viewing the 

statutes in this light - as continuations of each other, rather than in 

isolation - the unambiguous language of the statute clearly requires that 

any person who has been convicted of a sex offense under RCW 9A.44 (at 

any time), is required to register as a sex offender.  The Taylor court failed 

to read the statutes as continuations of each other. Therefore, it erred in 

interpreting the 1999 Amendment of RCW 9.94A.030 as undoing what the 

legislature clearly intended to do in 1990 and 1991, when it made the 

provisions of the Community Protection Act applicable both prospectively 

and retrospectively to those in custody or on community supervision. The 

                                                 
13

  1988 FINAL LEGISLATIVE REPORT, 50
th

 Wash. Leg., at 24-25; State v. 

Markle, 118 Wn.2d at 430-31. 
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Taylor interpretation is unsupported in light of the general provisions of 

RCW 1.12
14

 and the legislature’s clear intent to require both pre- and post-

1976 offenses within the meaning of “sex offense.” And, this 

interpretation is solely based on the Taylor court’s overly restrictive 

interpretation of the word “is.”
15

 

 Jurisdictions that have been confronted with the meaning of the 

word “is” in a statute have come to the opposite conclusion as the court 

did in Taylor.  For example, in U.S. v. Hammer, the court determined that 

the legislative history of the statute at issue revealed that the “is” in the 

statute, in fact, means “was”.
16

  121 F. Supp. 2d 794, 798 (M.D. Pa. 2000).  

                                                 
14

  Specifically applicable are the following: RCW 1.12.010 (“The provisions of 

this code shall be liberally construed, and shall not be limited by any rule of strict 

construction”); RCW 1.12.020 (“The provisions of a statute, so far as they are 

substantially the same as those of a statute existing at the time of their enactment, must be 

construed as continuations thereof”); RCW 1.12.026 (“The provisions of RCW 1.12.025 

as now or hereafter amended shall apply retrospectively as well as prospectively”); and  

RCW 1.12.028 (“If a statute refers to another statute of this state, the reference includes 

any amendments to the referenced statute unless a contrary intent is clearly expressed”). 
 

15
  The language at issue, as discussed supra, is the language of RCW 9.94A.030, 

that a sex offense includes a felony that “is a violation” of chapter 9A.44. Taylor, 162 

Wn. App. at 799. 

 
16

   House of Representatives Report 467 of the 103rd Congress in the 

section-by-section analysis of the statute states that [18 U.S.C.] § 3596 

“provides that when a sentence of death is to be implemented, the 

Attorney General shall release the person sentenced to death to the 

custody of a United States marshal, who shall supervise the 

implementation of the death sentence in the manner prescribed by the 

law of the State in which the sentence was imposed.” (emphasis added). 

This legislative history reveals that the “is” in the statute in fact means 

“was.”  

 

Hammer, 121 F. Supp. 2d at 798. 
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Similarly, in Banks v. Horn, the court stated: “In other words, ‘is’ means 

‘was’ or, to quote a statement which has been the subject of considerable 

public debate in recent months, ‘It depends on what your definition of ‘is’ 

is.”
17

 63 F. Supp. 2d 525, 547 (M.D. Pa. 1999). 

 This court need not engage in such sophistry as to the meaning of 

the word “is.”  The word “is” has been carried through each successive 

amendment of RCW 9.94A.030, even when the legislature has expressly 

stated that it intended that the language of the registration statute, 

RCW 9A.44.130, was to apply retroactively. Laws of 1990, ch. 3, 

§ 402(5). Although the language directing retroactive application was 

removed in the 1991 amendment to RCW 9A.44.130, the legislature made 

clear that the 1991 amendment did not have the effect of relieving “the 

obligation of sex offenders to comply with the registration requirements of 

RCW 9A.44.130 as that statute exists before July 28, 1991.” Laws of 

1991, ch. 274, § 1.  

The Legislature’s clear definition of “is” in this context is both “is” 

and “was at the time of the offense,” contrary to the conclusion reached in 

                                                                                                                         
 
17

  The court clearly refers to President Bill Clinton’s grand jury testimony 

defending his statement that “there’s nothing going on between [Monica Lewinsky and 

him], to which he responded, “It depends on what the meaning of the word 'is' is. If the--

if he--if 'is' means is and never has been, that is not--that is one thing. If it means there is 

none, that was a completely true statement.” See Clinton’s Grand Jury Testimony Part 4,   

Available at: http://www.washingtonpost.com/wpsrv/politics/special/clinton/stories/ 

bctest092198_4.htm.  (Last accessed April 12, 2016). 
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Taylor and Wheeler. This court should decline to follow those decisions 

because their reasoning is flawed.  

2. The Taylor and Wheeler courts’ interpretation of the statutes 

leads to an absurd result. 

Statutes are generally drafted in the present tense. NORMAN J. 

SINGER, STATUTES AND STATUTORY CONSTRUCTION, § 21:10 (6
th

 ed. 

2000). Each version of RCW 9.94A.030, even that in existence prior to the 

recodification of the statutory rape laws into the child rape laws, has 

provided that “a sex offense” means “a felony that is a violation of 

9A.44 RCW.” See e.g., Former RCW 9.94A.040(23) (1987); Former 

RCW 9.94A.030(29) (1990);  Laws of 1999, ch. 352, § 8. The Taylor 

court declined to read the phrase “sex offense means a felony that is a 

violation of chapter 9A.44” to make the statute applicable to “any felony 

that is ‘or was at the time of the offense’ a violation of chapter 9A.44 

RCW.”  Taylor, 162 Wn. App. at 799. Under the Taylor interpretation of 

this language, any successive amendment to the statutes at issue would 

render all previous convictions under those statutes non-sex offenses, for 

every time the statute is amended, the statute differs from its previous 

version.
18

  For that matter, the Taylor court’s interpretation of this 

                                                 
18

  For that matter, the Taylor interpretation would have the same effect on other 

statutes including the same language.  For instance, RCW 9.41.010(8) defines “felony 

firearm offense” in part as “any felony offense that is a violation of this chapter.” Under 

Taylor, any time this statute is amended, any crime that previously qualified as a “felony 
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language would render the statute defining “sex offense” meaningless, for 

as soon as a person has completed a crime, that offense is in the past.  

Therefore, after any completed crime, the conviction “is” for a felony that 

“was” a sex offense under RCW 9A.44.  

 The only logical and reasonable interpretation
19

 of the statutory 

language is that any offense that is charged at any time under RCW 9A.44 

is a “sex offense.”
20

  This view is consistent with the plain language of 

each successive amendment of the statute.   

                                                                                                                         
firearm offense” would no longer qualify as such an offense because it no longer “is” a 

violation under RCW 9.41, but, instead, “was” a violation under that chapter.  

 
19

  Statutory interpretation is a question of law, reviewed by the courts de novo.  

State v. Keller, 142 Wn.2d 267, 276, 19 P.3d 1030 (2001).  Courts assume the legislature 

means exactly what it says. Id.  Plain words do not require construction. Id. If a statute is 

plain and unambiguous, its meaning must be derived from the wording of the statute 

itself.  Id. A statute is ambiguous if it can reasonably be interpreted in two or more ways, 

but is not ambiguous simply because different interpretations are possible.  Id.  

When construing a statute, the court reads the statute in its entirety.  Each 

provision must be viewed in relation to other provisions, and harmonized if possible.  Id. 

The court must also avoid constructions that yield unlikely, strange or absurd 

consequences. Id.  Legislation must be read to give effect to every word and not to render 

any language superfluous or absurd.  State v. Reid, 144 Wn.2d 621, 629, 30 P.3d 465 

(2001).  

 
20

  RCW 9.94A.030 expressly exempts violations under RCW 9A.44.132 from the 

meaning of “sex offense.”  While the Taylor court rejected the State’s argument that the 

legislature’s express exclusion of failure to register as a sex offender should be viewed in 

light of the canon of statutory interpretation of expressio unius est exclusio alterius (to 

express one thing in a statute implies the exclusion of the other), it erroneously did so 

based on its reading of RCW 9.94A.030 in isolation from former versions of the statute. 

Taylor, 162 Wn. App. at 799-800. The State again urges this court to consider that the 

legislature could have expressly excluded the crimes of statutory rape from the definition 

had it intended to do so. It did not, and has clearly manifested its intent to the contrary. 
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 In 1988, 28 year old Mr. Arnold was charged with Second Degree 

Statutory Rape for raping a 12 year old.  The information filed against him 

charged: 

That said defendant in the county of Chelan, State of 

Washington, on or between the 1
st
 day of October 1987 and 

the 31
st
 day of December 1987 did then and there 

unlawfully and feloniously being over sixteen years of age, 

engage in sexual intercourse with G.A.B., a person not his 

spouse who was between the ages of eleven and fourteen; 

contrary to the form of the statute RCW 9A.44.080(1) in 

such cases made and provided  and against the peace and 

dignity of the State of Washington.  

 

Attachment A. 

 

 On the very face of the charging document, Mr. Arnold’s crime is 

a felony contrary to the form of RCW 9A.44.  Thus, Mr. Arnold is 

required to register as a sex offender under RCW 9A.44.130 and 

RCW 9.94A.030. Additionally, Mr. Arnold was incarcerated or supervised 

until 1992, and under the 1990 and 1991 amendments to RCW 9A.44.130, 

the legislature clearly stated its intent that he register as a sex offender.  

3. The Taylor and Wheeler decisions are both incorrect and 

harmful and, therefore, should be overruled. 

In Washington, the principle of stare decisis requires a “clear 

showing that an established rule is incorrect and harmful before it is 

abandoned.” State v. Devin, 158 Wn.2d 157, 168, 142 P.3d 599 (2006).  

The Court of Appeals applies this standard (as does the Supreme Court) in 



23 

 

determining whether to abrogate the holding of a prior decision. State v. 

Stalker, 152 Wn. App. 805, 812, 219 P.3d 722 (2009).  

The rule announced in Taylor and Wheeler, is demonstrably 

incorrect, as discussed above, resting on the Court of Appeals’ 

misinterpretation of clearly unambiguous language that effectuates the 

legislature’s intent to require all sex offenders, whether convicted under 

the Revised Criminal Code (Title 9A), or the former criminal code 

(pre-1976 Title 9) to comply with registration requirements.  

Additionally, the rule announced in Taylor and Wheeler is also 

clearly harmful.  The legislature has expressly declared its intent that sex 

offenders be required to register such that law enforcement might “protect 

their communities, conduct investigations, and quickly apprehend 

offenders” who pose such “a high risk of re-offense,” finding that law 

enforcement is “impaired by the lack of information available” to them 

about where convicted sex offenders live.  Laws of 1990, ch. 3, § 401.  

The “gap” in the applicable statutes as created by Taylor and Wheeler 

significantly hampers the efforts of law enforcement to protect their 

communities and arrest offenders who fall within that gap.  Any offender 

convicted between July 1, 1976 and July 1, 1988 has apparently been 

relieved of the registration requirement by these decisions, leaving twelve 

years’ worth of convicted sex offenders free to move about the state 
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unregistered and whereabouts unknown, when sex offenders convicted 

both before and after those dates are still required to register.  

4. The legislature has not amended the statutes at issue to 

“correct” the interpretation of the Taylor and Wheeler courts 

because it need not do so as those decisions conflict with 

Supreme Court precedent. 

The Wheeler court observed: 

 

[D]espite the holding in Taylor, the legislature has not 

amended the sex offense definition to include comparable 

post-1976 felonies that were subsequently repealed.  The 

legislature is presumed to be familiar with past judicial 

interpretations of statutes, including appellate court 

decisions … [L]egislative inaction following a judicial 

decision interpreting a statute often is deemed acquiescence 

in or acceptance of the decision. 

 

 Wheeler, 188 Wn. App. at 621 (citing State v. Stalker, 152 Wn. App. 805 

812-813, 219 P.3d 722 (2009)).  However, the conclusion that the 

legislature’s “inaction” necessarily means it has acquiesced to the judicial 

decision is not accurate, as many cases involving this issue indicate that it 

“may” be deemed acquiescence, rather than “is” deemed acquiescence. 

See Hangman Ridge Training Stables, Inc. v. Safeco Title Ins. Co., 

105 Wn.2d 778, 789, 719 P.2d 531 (1986) (“Legislative inaction in this 

instance”, where ten years had passed since judicial interpretation of 

statute, “indicated” legislative approval); Stalker, 152 Wn. App. at 813 

(where legislature made no changes to statutory language at issue in 

preceding twenty-eight years, despite twice amending the statutory 
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language in other respects, court found acquiescence in prior judicial 

interpretation.)  Unlike those cases, only five years has passed since 

Taylor (and one year has passed since Wheeler).
21

  This is simply not 

enough time to deem the legislature to have acquiesced to those judicial 

decisions, especially since those decisions conflict with Supreme Court 

precedent.
22

   

The Washington Supreme Court is the final arbiter of the meaning 

of Washington statutory law. See In Re Detention of Petersen, 

138 Wn.2d 70, 80-81, 980 P.2d 1204 (1999). Neither Taylor nor Wheeler 

were reviewed by our Supreme Court. The final word from the Supreme 

Court on the issue of the applicability of the registration requirements of 

RCW 9A.44.130 to offenders convicted of statutory rape was in Ward. 

123 Wn.2d 488. In Ward, the Supreme Court held that the registration 

statutes did not violate the prohibition against ex post facto laws and were 

applicable to Mr. Ward, a defendant convicted in 1988 of statutory rape in 

the first degree under the former laws, and also applied to John Doe 

                                                 
21

  As discussed above, it took five years before the legislature responded to the 

Supreme Court’s holding in Ward, and amended the statute to include pre-1976 crimes 

under Title 9 within the definition of “sex offense.”  

22
  Furthermore, courts only resort to aids of construction, which would include 

legislative inaction as evidence of legislative intent in circumstances where there is an 

ambiguity in the statute.  See City of Olympia v. Drebick, 156 Wn.2d 289, 295, 

126 P.3d 802 (2006).  However, where, as here, the statutory language is clear, and 

effectuates the clear intent manifested by the legislature, resort to the legislative “history” 

of legislative inaction taken after a prior erroneous judicial interpretation is inappropriate. 
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Parolee, a defendant who was on active supervision in 1990 when the 

registration law came into effect and who was subsequently required to 

register as a sex offender.
23

  

The decisions in Taylor and Wheeler wholly ignored the holding of 

Ward, (Wheeler does not even mention Ward, and Taylor mentions it only 

to demonstrate that the registration requirement is not a punishment).  In 

failing to acknowledge the holding of Ward, the Taylor and Wheeler 

courts used the 1999 amendment to RCW 9.94A.030 to overturn 

established Supreme Court precedent holding that the registration 

provisions of RCW 9A.44.130 do, in fact, apply to offenders convicted 

prior to 1989 but after 1976.  The legislature is under no obligation to 

amend its legislation when the clear precedent from our Supreme Court 

conflicts with the decisions of the Court of Appeals.  

Mr. Arnold, just like Mr. Ward, was convicted in 1988 of statutory 

rape, just months before the “renaming” of the offenses as “child rape.” 

He was incarcerated or supervised until March 20, 1992.  Attachment B.  

This date is well after the effective date of the 1990 codification of and the 

1991 amendment to the Community Protection Act.  Under Ward, 

Mr. Arnold is, and has always been (since the promulgation of the 

Community Protection Act), required to register as a sex offender.  

                                                 
23

  As was the petitioner.  Attachment B and C.  
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B. THE COURT SHOULD DENY THE DEFENDANT’S 

PERSONAL RESTRAINT PETITION BECAUSE HE IS 

UNABLE TO DEMONSTRATE PREJUDICE. 

None of Mr. Arnold’s previous convictions for failing to register as 

a sex offender are before this court.  He has not petitioned to have any of 

those convictions vacated as a result of State v. Taylor or State v. Wheeler.  

None of the facts of those previous cases are before this court.  Until 

collateral attack occurs on those charges, the convictions remain intact.  

Thus, his offender score is still a “9.” Attachment C, D and E.  

Similarly, the Defendant has not filed a collateral attack on his 

other current conviction for trafficking in stolen property in the second 

degree.  The sentence on that charge was 51 months, the same amount of 

time that was imposed on the current failure to register as a sex offender.  

Attachment D and E. Even without regard to the current failure to register 

as a sex offender charge, the defendant would still have an offender score 

of “9+” on the trafficking in stolen property charge, and would, therefore 

be required to serve the sentence he received - 51 months. Thus, he is 

unable to demonstrate the requisite prejudice arising from his 2015 

conviction for failure to register as a sex offender. See In Re St. Pierre, 

supra. Therefore, his personal restraint petition should be dismissed.  
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V. CONCLUSION 

The Taylor and Wheeler courts erred in determining a loophole 

exists in the statutes bearing on sex offender registration.  In failing to 

view the statutes as continuations of each other, those courts erroneously 

and unreasonably interpreted the clear language of RCW 9.94A.030 as 

only including offenses currently listed in RCW 9A.44.  It was those 

courts’ interpretation of the word “is” that created the “gap” in the statute, 

not the legislature’s clear and express language demonstrating its intent to 

include anyone convicted of an offense under RCW 9A.44 or the pre-1976 

code as “sex offenders” who are required to register pursuant to 

RCW 9A.44.130. The Taylor and Wheeler courts interpretation of the 

statutory language is both incorrect and harmful, and this court should 

decline to follow their flawed logic.  

The State respectfully requests that this court determine that the 

holdings of Taylor and Wheeler are incorrect as they conflict with the 

Supreme Court’s decision in State v. Ward, and that the Taylor and 

Wheeler decisions are inapplicable to Mr. Arnold’s case.  The State  
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respectfully requests the court dismiss Mr. Arnold’s personal restraint 

petition and motion to withdraw his guilty plea.  

Dated this 5 day of May, 2016. 

LAWRENCE H. HASKELL 

Prosecuting Attorney 

 

 

      

Gretchen E. Verhoef    #37938 

Deputy Prosecuting Attorney 

Attorney for Respondent 

 

 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

 

 I certify under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of 

Washington, that on May 5, 2016, I a copy of the Response to Personal 

Restraint Petition in this matter, to: 

 

Eddie D. Arnold, DOC 631420 

Stafford Creek Corrections Center 

191 Constantine Way 

Aberdeen, WA 98520 

 

 

 5/5/2016    Spokane, WA   Kim Cornelius  

 (Date) (Place) (Signature) 
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IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON F I LED 
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF CHELAN MICRO FlU"# 

STATE OF WASHINGTON 

Plaintiff, 

vs. 

EDDIE DEAN ARNOLD, 

Defendant. 

No, BB-1-00088-4 

INFORMATION 

Hn 3 
Slrll /, ... " '' 11 !; 

Ollf.LAN ''•'"· ; ·. •:1 FR 
Wl'H~'f" ' ito:i 11• 
IY~-- .. -'I' •· IIT 

COMES NOW Gary A. Riesen, Prosecuting Attorney for the County 

of Chelan, state of Washington, and by this his information accuses 

EDDIE DEAN ARNOLD of the crime of STATUTORY RAPE IN THE SECOND 

DEGREE committed as follows, to-wit: 

That the said defendant in the County of Chelan, state of 

Washington, on or between the 1st day of October, 1987 and the 31st 

day of December, 1987, did then and there unlawfully and 

feloniously being over sixteen years of age, engage in sexual 

intercourse with G.A.B., a person not his spouse who was between 

the ages of eleven and fourteen; contrary to the form of the 

INFORMATION 

sus . Lomax .· 
Chief Deputy Prosecuting Attorney 

<liiRV A. RIESEN /. 
CHELAN COUNTYL ~ 

PROSECUTING ATIORNEY 
P.O. Box 2596 

Wenalchoo, WA 9BB07 
(5011) 684-5202 

·. 

'·'. 
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STA'l'E 
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{) MIORO·PfLM 
' RoW ji; ') 

JUN 2 71988 
IN TH8 SU1:'8RIOR COURT OF '!'HE: S'l'II'L' N l :!:jJ'Rf" I . 6 ,fo{l.; ', ;..ji C'· k 

IN AIW FOR THE COUN'l'Y 0~' C: ll<~'(.'/\1 't"l:i, w . JVf 
By . , Deputy 

OF WASHINGTON, ) . 
)) No. fF · t · (J( (' 'f?. f'.~::.'l __ _ 

Plaintiff, 

Defendant. 

) 
l 
l 
) 
) 

l 

STAT8MEN'!' Of IJE:I'~~NDJ..tl'l' ON 
PLP.A OF GUIL'l'Y 

_______________________ ) 
l. My true name is £~\d.i (i' ~~ 0..'-L ·1\vvHl'\d 
2. My age is .?,C., dob ,).-Jfo .. ~<, 

3. I went through the GC:D grade in school. 

4. I have been informed and fully understand that I have i~e 
right to representation by a lawyer and that if I cannot affo~d ~o 
pay for a la ~tyer, Oct_ ~t i l l be /!r: qvided at no expense to me. ~ly 
lawye~ IS name is •[:!.&\ l.tU. ...... e .,-,.;(.\,/,\, .....; C\ + , 

6, I have been informed and fully understand that: 

(a) I have · the t:ight to a speedy and publ ic tt:ial by an 
impartial jury in the county whet:e the crime is al l eged to have been 
committed. 

26 ,. 

17 

28 
~ • :>. . 

' STATEMENT OF DEFENDANT ON 
P~EA OF GUILTY -1-

OARV A. RIESEN 
CHElAH COU Ht't 
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P 0 Do, 2 ~9C• 
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-
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(b) I have the right to remain silent before and durin; 
trial, and I nee~ not testify against myself. 

(c) I have the right at trial to hear and question witnesses 
who testify against me. 

(d) I have the right at trial to have witnesses testify fo: 
me. These witnesses can be made to appear at no expense to me. 

(e) I am presumed innocent until the charge is proven beyond 
a reasonable doubt or I enter a plea of guilty. 

(f) 
a trial. 

have the right to appeal a determinat i on of guilt after 

(g) If I plead guilty, give up the rights in statements 6 
· ( a ) - (f) . 

eft . 7.-\ \plead ~\.1.·1.1\q 
~<tf\ ~~q'\e C::J ' 

to the crime of S~lllltLtnq f(o...~t(! 
as charged in the (Amended) Inform tion . 

B. I make this plea freely and voluntarily. 

9. No one has threatened harm of any kind to me or to any 
other person to cause me to make this plea. 

10. No person has made promises of any kind to cause me to 
enter this plea except as set for.th in this statement. 

11. I have been informed and fully understand the prosecuting 
attorney will make the following recommendation to the court: 

ltml 11Q~ t"''"~""vd ;) (c D1ti))·\Lq .. .J 

12. I have been informed and fully und·j! r sta nd that the 
standard sentencing range is based on the crime c h arg ed and my 
criminal history. Criminal history includes prior convictions, 
whether in this state, in federal court, or elsewhere. Criminal 
history also includes convictions or guilty pleas at juvenile court 
that are felonies an~ which were committed when I was fifteen years 
of age or. older. Juvenile conv i ctions count only if 1 was less than 
twenty-three years of age at the time l committed this presenL 
offense. I fully und erstand that if criminal history in addition to 
that listed in paragraph 5 is discovered, both the standard sentence 
range and the prosecuting attorney's recommenda t ion may increase. 
gven so, I fully unders~and that my plea of guilty to this charge is 

STATEMENT OF DEFENDANT ON 
PLEA OF GUILTY -2-

GARY A. RIESEN 
CHELAN COUNTY 

PROSt:CUTING ATTORNEY 
Po Bo•. 2l16 

\V!'nalt;hu . '11/. 96801 
~ 0!) 1 (16.!·~{)2 
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19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

2) 

26 

27 

28 

bind i ng upon me if accepted by the court, a nd I cannot ch~nge my 
mind if additional criminal history is discov e red and the standard 
range and prosecuting attorney's recommendation increases. 

1 3. I have been i nfor med and f dlly unde rsta nd t hat t he cou rt 
does not ha ve to fa 11 o w any.o ne ' s recomme nd11t ion tiS to sentence . 1 
have bee n i nfo r med an d fully unde r s t ancl t hat the co urt must i mpose a 
se n te nce wit h i n t h e sta ndard sentence ra nge un less the court fi nds 
s ubstan ti a l and compelling reaso ns no t t o do so . If t he c oU rt go es 
out sii:le the standar d ra ng!! , eit her I o r t he state ca n apPeal t hat 
se ntence . I f t he se ~ te n ce is wit h i n t he stand ard sen tence tange , no 
one ca n flp peal th e se n tence . re ~he s ent e nce is with i n t-he sta ndard 
s ent e nc e ra nge, no one can appeal the se nt ence . I e~ l so un d e rs t a nd 
t hat t he court must sente nce to a mandatory minimum t e rm, if any , as 
prov i ded in paragraph 14 and that the cou rt ~a y not v ary o r modi f y 
t hat manda tory mini mum te~m for any r ea son. 

14. I have been furth e r. advised that the crime(s) of 

Wl t l>!hic I 
of not less 
law requires tha 
not permit a ny ed ification o 
applicable, any or all of · h is p a ragra ph 
ini tialed y the defendan · a nd the judge.) 

of to t confi ne me n t 
ad vised that the 

imposed and does 
' n imum term. (If not 
all be stricken and 

15. I have been adv ised that th e se e nces i~1po ell 
wi l l ~n consecu tiv y/concurr l y 

_c_o_u_r_t~~f~l-n~a~s u stan t i a l ~d compelling r easons to n the 

i n c o unts 
unless the 
s e nte nces 

y/oon s ec u t i~ly . 

16 . 1 understa nd t h a t if I am o n p robation, parol e or com
muni.ty superv ision , a plea o f guil ty t o t h e prese nt char ge( s ) will 
be su ff.ioicnt gro unds f o r a Judg e t o re vo ke my probat i on or com
muni t y superv ision or f o r t he par ole board to r evo ke my parol e. 

1 7 . I understa nd that if I am not a citi zen of , t he Un i ted 
States , a pl ea of g uilty to a n offe nse punish ab l e as a crime under 
sta te law i s g r o un ds f or d ep o ~ t ation, exclusion from admission to 
the Un i t ed Sta te s , or denial of na tur a lization pur suant to t h e laws 
of the Uni ted St ates . 

18 . The court has asked me to state briefly in my own words 
what I d id that resulted in my bei ng charged with the c~~me in the 
(Amended ) Information. '!' h is is my stat ement: :In { CA·{ t ~ /"'1-?'n\~'l.l.y 
~~ \.L.:eV' I •<"\to \?'..of ,· •. \ 1'1 ~'1''( "0 rc...J " J1 K I.~U~ Lc\.h~ ~~"" •' .-0:. 
~ c\.t',. u-1\ 'j_ 1 11-tt' ...__..-, ... VIol n,~~.l<"'T--:-~-:----

I\J ~ .,1 Q •h,.l.t l! 1 d 11Ct1• < ( ~..:,w\"YL:A~.::;i;J~\'' 1 t.HI'i.~ 
4lA.'-&'-<( .... ~. ' h (t cL.:..U~,l ' t1 r.t \ •. !, ~~(i-4 i!: ·~j~-- . ·----------

STATEMENT OF DEFENDANT ON 
PLEA OF GUILTY -3-

GARY A. RIESEN 
CIIELAN COUNTY 

PROS[CUTING ATTORNEY 
P.O 0... 2595 

WOR.11Choc . WA !)8601 
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. ' I I .' 

.· .. 
·, .:,. .. · .. ,,. 

19 . l h a v e read or ha v e had tead t o me and fully under s ta:~d 
all of the numbered sectio ns above (l throug h 19) and have rece iv~d 
a cop y of "Stateme nt of D e~e nd a n t oft Plea of Guilty". I have :10 

fut t her quest ions to ask o f; t he court·. 

De en ant 

.. ~~~~ ~ Prosecut ing Attorney 

The foregoing statement was read by or to the defendant and 
signed by the defendant in the presence of his or her attorney, a:~d 
the und£<rsigned judge, in open court. The court finds the d~
fendant's plea of guilty to be knowingly, intelligently and volu:~
tarily made, that the court has informed the defendant of the nature 
of the charge and the cons eq ue of the plea, that ther e is a 
factual basis f or t h e p l e a, a d t h t the defendant is guilty IS 

~h~rged. ~~-

DATED this ~ay ofr --_.,.,.==t:,------.,.,.,..- -

I am flue n t i n t h e langu ag e , a nd I h<l.'le 
tra n sl.<~ted this e nt i re doc ume nt f o r theoetendant from E:ngl ish i nca 
tha t lang uag e . The defe nd an t has ack nowl e dg ed h is or her uncier
s t a nd i ng of bot h t h e t r anslatio n a nd t h e s ubject matter o f this 
doc um e nt. I certify unde r pe na l t y of perju ry under t he laws of the 
St a te of Wash i ngton t h at t he f oregoi ng is tt ue and cor r ect . 

DATED this day of - - ------

STATEMENT OF DEFENDANT ON 
PLEA OF GUILTY -4-

I nt erpre t or 

198_ 

GARY A. AI€SEN 
CHElAN COUNTY 

PROSECUTING ATlOR14!Y 
P.O. Oo1. ?~!5 

wenalchee. vu .. sse ·: 1 
109/66• ·11" 
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IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHING•rON 
IN -AND FOR THE COUNT'i OF CHF.LMI 

S'l'A'l'E OF WASHINGTON 1 

No. c:g3 -1 -rYn8~-cf 
Plaint iff, 

VB. 

Defendant, 

SID# LOA l I I t)Z8 1lo 

JUDGMENT AND SENTENC~ 
l>JLEO AND RllOOkDIGD ON 

MICRO·l'ILM J<7_ now_ - ~ 

00452 8 AUG ;] l~ll8 
SIR/ A. WOODS, Co. Clork 

By- re... - Dop~~~y 

This co ur t .hav~g cond ucted a s.7ftencing hea r i ng pursy.p nt to 
RCW 9 .9411.110 on t he 6 day of l':l;:l..."-'1.11ls:t:::____ , 19 B__x upon 
defe nd an t ' s conv ic t on o t he cri me(s) s~l- forth below, and the 
cour t having heard fro m t he par ties a nd considered t he presentence 
r epor ts and t he ~ecord e and files h e~ei n, a nd othe r wi s e being fully 
advised, now makes t he following findings: 

1. PARTIES PRESENT: Present at ~e ae7tenoi~g ~e ar inltwere 
the defendant, the defendant's attorney, lx;lli f en. Y y')'\,jC~ , 
and Chief Deputy Prosecuting Attorney CSiA;;::tiY\ Lrn'V'\tl . 

2, CURRENT OI'FENSE(S): The defenda n t h as bee n conv icted of 
the following current of f:OztAs ) upon a plea o f gullty/ ue a;.Q ig ~ ..Q.f 
j~•cy/ by tile gg1a:t., on the e'- . day '?f JU>Vte. ! 198~ . 

Count I - Crime: ..S~Jif'~'b-qj_ &_~ ~J:1.d{'rb~rl'!e 
~~~~ of Cr i~~ '; 1itJ/irJf ( I fi7- &ccm hfr 3? I~ 

Count II 

Count III 

Special Find ~ ngs : __________ '------------------------
- Crime: __________________________________________ __ 

RCW Dat,_e __ o~f~C~r~i-m-e-,-------------------------------------
Speoial Findin~g~s-,----------------------------------

- Crime: ________________________________________ ___ 

RCW 
Dat7e~o~f~C~r'l~m~e-, -------------------------------------

Specia l Findin_g_s-,----------------------------------

~~ .. ~·: ·~ 
/~· .... 

~ 
~ 
' ., .. 
~ 
'r, 

! 
? 

!• 
' 1,~. 
f; 

~: 
! 
:~; . ,, 
ii' 
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~ 
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~: 
~ 
~
~ 
.~ 
{~ 

~ 

w 
~·· . 

r·· r 
GARY A. RIESEN If 

CHELAN COUNTY 
PROS£CUTINO ATTORNEY I 

JUDGMENT AND SENTENCE -1- ' .o a •• ~~~& 'r 
Vlt .. tc~" · WA ~880 1 j G1, 
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5. SENTENCE ALT<:!tNATIVE FINDINGS: 

( ) A. FIRST-TIM~ OFPENSE: The defendant qualifies as 
a f irst- time of fend"" pu rsuant to RCW 9,941\,120(5). The first-time 
offender waiver ls/is not used in this sentence, 

( ) B. EXCEPTIONAL SENTENCE: su'bstantial and 
compel-1 i ng reason s e xist wh ich justi fy a s entence above/below the 
sta ndard ra nge f or count( s) • Findings o f Fact and 
Concl us ions of. Law purs uant to RCW 9 . 9 ~1\. 12 0 ( 3) and Stipulatio ns as 
to r eal and mate rial f;:J cts, if any, are attached as Append ix D. 

( ) C. SPECIAL SEXUAL OFFENDER SENTENCING AL-
TE RNATI VE: The def end ant h a s bee n conv i c ted o f a fe l ony s exual 
of f·ense as spec ifi ed i n .RCW 9 . 941\. l20 ( 7)( a ) and is eligi ble f o r use 
of t h e s pec i a l sex ua l offender s en te ncing a l t e rnat i ve . Bo t h the 

9 de fend an t and/ o r t he community will/wil l no t benef it ' fJ:·om us e of the 
al terna t i ve , 

10 

II 

12 

13 

I~ 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 . 

28 

( ) D, SEXUAL OFFENDER TREATMENT PROGRAM: '!'he 
de fe ndant has been conv i cted of a felo ny sexu a l o f fense, d oes not 
qu a l ify for the s pecial sexual offend er sen tencing alterna t ive , and 
is to be s entenced t o a term of co n f ~nement of mor e than on e year 
bu t less t hen six y e ars. The defend an t shall/ s hal l not be ordered 
committed for evaluation for treatment pursuant to RCW 
9,94A.l20(7)(b) 

( ) E. RESTITUTION : Based on information concerning 
restitution attached in Appendix E, the defendant is responsible for 
payment of restitution: 

( ) For offenses adjudicated her.ein pursuant to RCW 
9.94A.l40(1), 

( ) For offenses which were not prosecuted and for 
which the defendan t ag reed to make restitution in a plea agreement, 
which is attached as Appendix E. 

' 
6. MONETARY PAYMENTS JUDGMENT AND SENTENCE: The defendant is 

ADJUDG~D to be responsib l e for ma k ing mon e t a ry paymen t s a s st a ted 
be l ow, within ten year s , under t he s upe r vision of th e Department of 
Cor r ec tlone, The defe ndant i s ORDER ED t o make th e f o llowing 
monetary payments: 

(><l 

ex> 
( l 

A. COSTS: Court Costs , 
B. VICTIM ASSESSMENT: Penalty 

assessment pursuant to RCW 7.68,035 

C. RESTITUTION: Restitution payments (With 
credit for amounts paid by co-defendants, 
if any) to: 

$70.00 
fi']Q_DD 

JUDGMENT AND SENTENCE -3 -

GARY A. RIESEN 
CHELAN COUNTY 

PROSECUTING ATTORNEY 
P 0 Box 2S90 

Wenalchoo. WA 98801 
509/66H202 
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5, SENTENCE ALTt::=:NATIVE FINDINGS: 

( ) A. FIRST-TIME OFPENSE: The defendant qualifies as 
a first-time offender pursuant to RCW 9,94A.l20(5), The first-time 
offender waiver is/is not used in this sentence. 

( ) B. EXCEPTIONAL SENTENCE: Substantial and 
compe 11 ing reasons exist which :1 us t ily a s entence above/below the 
standard ra nge for count(s) • Findings of Fact and 
Conclusions of Law pursuant to RCW 9 . 94A . l?.0( 3) and S tipulations as 
to real and material facts, if any, are attached as Appendix D. 

( ) C. SPECIAL SEXUAL OFFENDER SENTENCING AL
TERNATIVE: The defendant has been convicted of a felony sexual 
offense as specified in RCW 9.94A.l20(7)(a) and is eligible for use 
of the special sexual offender sentencing alternative. Both the 
defendant andL£! the community will/will not benefit' from use of the 
alternative. 

( ) D. SEXUAL OFFENDER TREATMENT PROGRAM: 'l'he 
defendant has been convicted of a felony sexual offense, does not 
qualify for the special sexual offender sentencing alternative, and 
is to be sentenced to a term of confinement of more than one year 
but less than six years. The defendant ~hall/s h all not be ordered 
committed for ev aluat ion for trea tment pursuant to RCW 
9.94A.l20( 7)( b) 

( ) E. RESTITUTION: Based on information concerning 
restitution attached in Appendix E, the defendant is responsible for 
payment of restitution: 

( ) 
9.94A.l40(l). 

For offenses adjudicated herein pursuant to RCW 

( ) For offenses which were not prosecuted and for 
which the defendant agreed to make restitution in a plea agreement, 
which is attached as Appendix E. 

' ' 6. MONETARY PAYMENTS JUDGMENT AND SENTENCE: The defendant is 
ADJUDGED to be responsible for making monetary payments as stated 
below, within ten years, under the supervision of the Department of 
Corrections. The defendant is ORDERED to make the following 
monetary payments: 

(Xl 

ex> 
( ) 

A. COSTS: Court Costs. 
B. VICTIM ASSESSMENT: Penalty 

assessment pursuant to RCW 7,68,035 
C. RESTITUTION: Restitution payments (with 

credit for amounts paid by co-defendants, 
if any) to: 

$70.00 

~712...00 

JUDGMENT AND SENTENCE -3-

GARY A. RIESEN 
CHELAN COUNTY 

PROSECUTING ATTORNEY 
P 0. Bo> liDO 

Wenalchee. WA gaeoJ 
511!lluliA·5102 

~ 

I 
•• =- · 

' . 

! .... ~ .' . 
• >": T 

! 
,:·,. 

. "\ 
.. 

- .~ :;'; J ' .. ... ,: ••• · . .. -.. . 

: · 

-. 

,,,('-. 

·. _.:"· .. · 

. ~ .... 

'• 

Attach. A-8



I 

4 

6 

9 

10 

II 

12 

" 
14 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

26 

27 

28 

.'; 

0 0 

7. DETERMINATE JUDGMENT 1\ND SENTENCE: The court ha.Lng 
determined t hat no legal cause exists to show why further judgEnt 
should not be pronou nced, it ls therefore ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND 
DECREED the defendant serve the determinate sentence and abid! by 
the conditions set forth below. 

The defendant is sentenced to a term 
the custody of the Department of Corrections 
Count I , months on count !I, 
with credit for time served o f --~1?.~??u_ _____ _ 

of total confinemeM in 
for If/ months on 

monttl s on count rn, 
---crily9. 

the terms in counts 
the terms in counts 
for a total term of 

are concurrent. 
are consecutive, 

------- months. 

The following appendices are attached to this Judgment and 
Sentence and are incorporated by this reference: 

Appendix A, Current Offenses 
Appendix a, Current History 
Appendix c, Sentence Scoring Worksheet(s) 
Appendix D, Exceptional Sentence 
Appendix E, Restitution 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the bail bond filed herein is 
hereby exonerated. 

DONE IN OPEN COURT this ~' day of ~' 198~ . 

JUDGMENT AND SENTENCE -5-

Z.~tJl<t;P~ for the 
County of Chelan 

GAilY A.IIIESEN 
CHELAN tiUHlY 

~ROSECUTING.lTTQAIIEY 
P,O, 80<ll'l6 

WeAIItheo, . 91801 
~09/6&1!1!112 
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x, 51 r I A. lloods , Clerk of this 
ccurt, cerWy th£1t. tl1e ill:ovl: is 
a true copy of the Judgm:ant nrd 
Scnten::e in this notion on ;record 
n my of11cn. 

Sir I 1\. Woods~· am.AN COUinY CLERK 

-z..
AUGUST -t, \988 

Ofi"EHDEI1. !DENl'l CATIClol 

State I.D. 1\\Jn'ber . WI\\ \ \003 \6 

Date of Birth 

SeX Mala 

Caucas1an 

.. 

2/\6/59 
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WORKING COPY-

FILED 
MAR 1 8 2015 

SPOKANE COUNTY CLERK 

IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON 
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF SPOKANE 

STATE OF WASHINGTON ) No. 13-1-03641-1 
) 

Plaintiff, ) PA# 13-9-5007 4-0 
) 

v. ) RPT# 002-13-0803410 
) RCW 9A.44.132F-F (#70606) 

EDDIE D. ARNOLD ) 
WM 02/16/59 ) UNDERSTANDING OF DEFENDANT'S 

Defendant(s). ) CRIMINAL HISTORY (ST) 

Pursuant to CrR 4.2 (e) the parties set out the following: 

1.4 PROSECUTOR'S UNDERSTANDING OF DEFENDANTS CRIMINAL HISTORY 
~RCW 9.94A.525~: 

Crime Date of Crime Adult or Place of Conviction 
Crime T~ee Juv 

SEX OFFENDER FAIL TO 022607 NV A SPOKANE CO, WA 
REGISTER 
PSP2 121204 NV A OKANOGAN CO, WA 
SEX OFFENDER FAIL TO 111604 NV A OKANOGAN CO, WA 
REGISTER 
SEX OFFENDER FAIL TO 102503 NV A OKANOGAN CO, WA 
REGISTER 
SEX OFFENDER FAIL TO 052903 NV A OKANOGAN CO, WA 
REGISTER 
PSP2 052903 NV A OKANOGAN CO, WA 
BURGLARY 090597 A BENAWAH CO, ID 
SEX OFFENDER FAIL TO 050900 NV A OKANOGAN CO, WA 
REGISTER 
THEFT2 020900 NV A OKANOGAN CO, WA 
THEFT2 041800 NV A OKANOGAN CO, WA 
RES. BURGLARY 071097 NV A WHITMAN CO, WA 
PSP2 122195 NV A WHITMAN CO, WA 
STATRAPE2 042688 NV A CHELAN CO, WA 

SEX 
BURGLARY 2 112383 NV A OKANOGAN CO, WA 
FORGERY NA NV A OKANOGAN CO, WA 
PSP2 052177 NV A SNOHOMISH CO, WA 

UNDERSTANDING DEFENDANts CRIMINAL RisToRY 
(RCW 9.94A.080, 1 00) 

Sent. 
Date 
022208 

070705 
070705 

010804 

100903 

100903 
032301 
120700 

120700 
120700 
061998 
012197 
080288 

030284 
040579 
080877 

PAGE 1 
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WORKING COPY'---------------------------------------

1 

( ) Prior convictions counted as one offense in determining 
offender score (RCW 9.94A.525(5)): ----- ----------

1.4(a) This statement of Prosecutor's Understanding of Defendant's Criminal History is based 
upon present information known to the Prosecutor and does not limit the use of 
additional criminal history if later ascertained. 

1.5 Defendant's understanding and agreement that his/her criminal conviction history is set 
forth above in this document. Defendant affirmatively agrees that the State has proven, 
by a preponderance of the evidence, defendant's prior convictions and stipulates, 
without objection, by his/her signature below, unless a specific objection is otherwise 
stated in writing within this document - UNDERSTANDING OF DEFENDANT'S 
CRIMINAL HISTORY, each of the listed criminal convictions contained within this 

. document count in the computation of the offender score and sentencing range and that 
any out-of-state or foreign conviction(s) is the equivalent of a Washington State criminal 
felony offense and conviction for the purposes of computation of the resultant offender 
score and sentencing range. The defendant further stipulates and agrees he/she has 
read or has had the contents of the document read to him/her and he/she understands 
and agrees with the entirety of the contents of this document. (DEFENDANT'S INITIALS 
f rt- ). . 

( ) The defendant committed the current offense while on community placement/community 
custody at the time of the offense. RCW 9.94A.525 

Date: J .- JC.-1.::>__. 

Date: J-;~,.-l~ 

Date: J -/8-£$ 

EDDIE D. ARNOLD 
Defendant 

UNDERSTANDING DEFENDANT's CRIMINAL HiSTORY 
(RCW 9.94A.080,100) 

28768 
WSBA# 

PAGE 2 
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Spokane County Sheriffs Office 

Ozzie D. Knezovich, Sheriff 

"In partnership with the community -Dedicated to your safety" 

June 17, 2015 

Eddie Dean Arnold 

Dear Mr. Arnold, 

In a recent Washington State Court of Appeals rul ing , it has been determined that sex offender 
registration is not required under the following circumstances: the conviction is for Statutory 
Rape, or Indecent Liberties where the child is under 14, and the crime occurred between July 1, 
1976 and July 1, 1988. 

The conviction for which you have been registering falls under this recent ruling. We expect the 
legislature may revise the registration statute in the near future, which may again require that 
you register. Documentation will be sent to the Washington State Patrol , advising them of your 
relief from registration. This letter is your confi rmation of relief and should be retained in your 
personal records. 

If there is a law revision , which again makes your conviction registerable, you will be notified 
and expected to register again in the State of Washington. Your relief of sex offender 
registration in Washington State does not relieve you of the responsibility to cornply with 
registration requirements of other states if you were to move. 

If you have any additional questions or need clarification please contact Detective Dave Skogen 
at 509-477-6620. 

Sincerely, 

OZZIE D. KNEZOVICH, Sheriff 

~\A 
Jac Rosenthal, Sergeant 
Sexual Assault Unit 

110.0 W. Mallon • Public S~fety Building • Spokane. Washington 99260-0300 • (509) 477.4739 • Fax : (509) 477-5641 
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SEX/KIDNAPPING OFFENDER REGISTRATION 
RELIEVED OF DUTY TO REGISTER 

(When a Court Order Is Not Needed) 

JOSIP:( J 

Print Full Name of Registrant ---""[:;;_cl=~ -=6:'-'-\':f_,..,.__()q~=·h'-"l-Ln.......__.t\:--'--'(-'V\'--"O""-\::.......J-=------
Date of Birth QJ._ ~ t I !l - \q 5'3 
SlD Number l l \ 0~ 3 { { ' 

D The above offender has spent 10 consecutive years in the community without 
being convicted of a disqualifying offense, pursuant to RC.W 9A.44.142. 

0 The above offender has spent'15 consecutive years In the community without 
being convicted of a disqualifying offense, pursuant to RCW 9A.44;142. 

The following have been checked to verify this and there have been no prior 
conviction(s) for a sex/kidnapping offense: 

D Washington State Crime lnf()nrtation Center (WACIC} 
D Washington State Identification and Criminal History Section (WAS IS) 
0 National Crime Information Center (NCfC) 
D Superior Court Management Information System (SCOMIS) 
0 Judicial Information Systems (JIS) (Formerly OISCIS) 
D Fe~onv O~"~r.der Reporf.ing System (FORS) 
0 · V·:ANTS .~·, ... .. 'AI1RANTS . 
D DECEABf.U ' I 
~ OTHER ~ l};,4&'{t-( . 

Signature of Official 

Print Name of Official _......:::.~..!..=:.__..;.__~~~j=4',Q~J/~/\~--------
~gency Nam~ 2f) \y:u& G'J . S () 

Phone Number ---=~~LKL-. ~YJ.....r~?.~.-LJ.~:~Ltl....:.&~~· ........ )~· _____ _,_ __ _ 

3000-240-505 (R 11110) 
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